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) )
1999 2019

1999 14,029
2000 14,514
2001 15,083
2002 15,401
2003 15,642
2004 15,773
2005 15,918
2006 16,056
2007 16,017
2008 17,483
2009 18,479
2010 19,498
2011 21,034
2012 20,840
2013 21,095
2014 21,388
2015 22,485
2016 22,761
2017 22,698
2018 23,175
2019 23,173
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2003 166.94

2004 239.29 43.3
2005 307.50 28.5
2006 751.77 1445
2007 927.02 23.3
2008 315.62 66.0
2009 49477 56.8
2010 484 .66 2.0
2011 351.55 27.5
2012 413.73 17.7
2013 504.63 22.0
2014 545.63 8.1
2015 579.03 147
2016 664 .87 14.8
2017 984.24 48.0
2018 892.54 9.3
2019 960.99 7.7
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London Stock Exchange Group plc
FTSE International Limited FTSE Fixed Income
LLC London Stock Exchange Group plc
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2020
25,672,203.26 97.60
630,281.47 2.40
26,302,484.73
( 2,869 ) 100.00
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2020
)

JS COMM BANK

1 | FOREIGN TRADE 674,375 | 2.79 | 1,883,947.98 | 3.83 | 2,579,767.22 | 9.81
VIETNAM VND

2 | VINHOMES JSC VND 554,500 | 3.73 | 2,066,134.75 | 3.77 | 2,092,497.99 | 7.96

3 | FPT CORP VND 917,486 | 1.71 | 1,569,628.64 | 2.24 | 2,057,587.10 | 7.82
MILITARY

4 | COMMERCIAL BK 2,201,974 | 0.54 | 1,184,901.48 | 0.90 | 1,975,290.43 | 7.51
VND

5 \'\ﬂﬁg'LEWORLD'NV 380,632 | 1.72 654,974.56 | 4.78 | 1,818,865.12 | 6.92
VIETNAM DAIRY

6 | PRODUCTS VND 382,984 | 5.97 | 2,284,903.40 | 4.68 | 1,792,114.71 | 6.81
PETROVIETNAM

7 | 6a3 35 VND 392,090 | 3.63 | 1,423,168.14 | 3.73 | 1,462,706.90 | 5.56

8 | VINGROUP JSC VND 279,926 | 5.05 | 1,413,845.37 | 4.95 | 1,385,927.64 | 5.27
PHUNHUAN

9 | JEIELRY 35C VND 314,666 | 2.21 695,552.32 | 3.64 | 1,144,017.94 | 4.35
VIETNAM JS

10 | COMMERCIAL BK 1,030,007 | 0.94 972,313.25 | 1.05 | 1,083,890.58 | 4.12
VND
SAIGON BEER

11| L CONO VND 99,000 |11.31 | 1,119,322.26 | 9.14 905,162.37 | 3.44
BK FOR

12| INVESTMENT AND 320,003 | 1.75 560,096.35 | 2.22 710,749.75 | 2.70
DEV VIET VND
VIETJET

13| AVIATION JSC VND 117,940 | 5.60 660,958.31 | 5.62 662,258.51 | 2.52
VINCOM RETAIL

141 35¢ VND 492,500 | 1.55 761,444.45 | 1.30 638,272.52 | 2.43

15 | HOA PHAT GROUP 583,573 | 1.00 583,839.38 | 1.04 606,551.48 | 2.31
JSC VND
NAM LONG

16 | | N\VESTVENT VND 427,767 | 1.14 489,460.74 | 1.14 488,887.12 | 1.86
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)

17 | DAT XANH GROUP 973,320 | 0.80 | 773,851.37 | 0.50 | 484,834.00 | 1.84
JSC UND

18 \G/E“SADEPTCORP 570,000 | 1.46 | 831,302.47 | 0.82 | 469,530.34 | 1.79
VIETNAM

19 | TECHNOLGICAL 489,000 | 1.37 | 670,337.50 | 0.93 | 455,531.11 | 1.73
AND COM BANK VND
VIETNAM NATL

20| IEINEIAIL 103,660 | 2.76 | 533,687.00 | 2.20 | 442.660.99 | 1.68

21 | VIETTEL POST JvC 80,100 | 6.24 | 499,603.81 | 4.08 | 398,651.82 | 1.52
KHANG DIEN HOUSE

22 | TRADING AND INV 352,484 | 0.71| 249.245.49 | 1.08 | 380,044.84 | 1.44
JSC VND

23 EQSV'ETHLDGS 129,000 | 4.28 | 552,661.29 | 2.54 | 327,131.58 | 1.24
MA SAN GROUP

24| pe oA 137,000 | 3.68 | 504,449.49 | 2.16 | 296,015.00 | 1.13
PETROVIETNAW

25 | P 420,000 | 0.68 | 284,234.98 | 0.45 | 190,192.79 | 0.72
BIDV INSURANCE

26 | oot 100,770 | 0.96 |  97,008.83 | 1.21 | 121,687.15 | 0.46
AIRPORTS CORP OF

27 | BIREORES OO 40,000 | 3.20 | 127.885.38 | 2.79 | 111,441.76 | 0.42
HO CHI MINH CITY

28| oo M CtT 133,000 | 1.33 | 176,202.30 | 0.83 | 110,417.48 | 0.42
SSI SECURITIES

20| oL oEE 120,000 | 1.36 | 163,322.54 | 0.76 |  91,603.05 | 0.35
VIETNAM

30| e D 70,000 | 1.80 | 126,108.74 | 1.23|  85.888.64 | 0.33
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2020
2010 50,240,396.38 |  5,479,217,629 82.75 9,025
- 38,528,310.90 |  4,201,897,587 70.51 7,690
2012 37,522,256.50 |  4,002,177,294 76.50 8,343
2013 46,079,927.65 |  5,025,476,910 | 114.97 | 12,539
2014 39,381,726.02 |  4,294,971,040 | 137.21| 14,964
2015 27.642,073.20 | 3,014,644,503 | 112.98 | 12,322
20%2 33,920,586.51 3,609,379,165 | 153.64 | 16,756
201% 28,485,937 .17 3.106,676,308 | 165.66 | 18,067
2015 31,766,459.25 |  3.464,450,046 | 190.24 | 20,748
2013 29.,986,900.79 3,270,371,400 | 181.68| 19,814
2019 20,476,456.36 |  3,214,702,331 | 174.48| 19,029
29,359,108 49 3,201,904,372 | 172.78 | 18,843

29,409,148 .61 3,207,361,747 | 172.93| 18,860

28,678,601.05 |  3,127.688,231 | 167.28| 18,244

28.,440,477.36 |  3,101,718,461 | 167.08| 18,222

20.669,008.00 |  3,235,711,828 | 176.00| 19,195

29,583, 431.39 3,226,360,027 | 176.85| 19,287

29,986,900.79 3,270,371,400 | 181.68 | 19,814

10 20,484,138.25 |  3,215.540,118 | 181.06 | 19,746

11 28,405,846.46 |  3,007,941,615| 175.00| 19,086

12 28,122,392.45 |  3,067,028,121 | 174.22| 19,000

2020 26,302,484.73 |  2.,868,548,985 | 165.67 | 18,068
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2009 10 13,915 67,301 607,112
2010 30 (13,915) (67,301) (607,112)
18,145 78,847 546,410
ggig . 30 (18,145) (78,847) (546,410)
2011 10 11,779 67,680 490,509
2012 30 (11,779) (67,680) (490,509)
2012 10 12,862 102,563 400,808
2013 30 (12,862) (102,563) (400,808)
8,389 122,858 286,339
3812 ¥ 30 (8,389) (122,858) (286,339)
30,469 72,142 244,666
ggig ¥ 30 (30,469) (72,142) (244,666)
10
2015 10 11,758 39,153 217,271
2016 30 (11,758) (39,153) (217,271)
11
2016 10 3,370 48,682 171,959
2017 30 (3,370) (48,682) (171,959)
12
2017 10 20,547 25,526 166,980
2018 30 (20,547) (25,526) (166,980)
13
2018 10 15,829 17,758 165,051
2019 30 (15,829) (17,758) (165,051)
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2019 30

2019 2018
715,125 77,992 751,986 82,012
29,560,847 3,223,906 28,585,617 3,117,547
2,205,569 240,539
11 347,132 37,858
10 417 45 148,502 16,196
30,276,389 3,301,943 32,038,806 3,494,152
29,986,901 3,270,371 31,766,459 3,464,450
29,986,901 3,270,371 31,766,459 3,464,450
7 1
13 289,488 31,572 272,340 29,701
289,488 31,572 272,347 29,702

30,276,389 3,301,943 32,038,806 3,494,152
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2019 30

2019 2018
562,061 61,298 713,728 77,839
7,335 800 5,443 594
(294,827) (32,154) (637,819) (69,561)
(864,149) (94,244) 6,191,162 675,208
122,832 13,396
(589,580) (64,300) 6,395,346 697,476
14 26,129 2,850 29,598 3,228
14 232,366 25,342 263,093 28,693
14 1,819,646 198,451
14 17,419 1,900 19,732 2,152
14 241,780 26,369 269,684 29,412
42,000 4,581 43,268 4,719
14 145,129 15,828 164,433 17,933
14 58,063 6,332 65,773 7,173
14 3,000 327 3,000 327
38,494 4,198 31,378 3,422
40,622 4,430 42,441 4,629
845,002 92,156 2,752,046 300,138
(1,434,582) (156, 456) 3,643,300 397,338
12 601,083 65,554
601,083 65,554
(1,434,582) (156, 456) 4,244,383 462,892
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2019 30
2019
166,980 31,766,459 3,464,450
15,829 2,736,001 298,388
(17,758) (3,080,977) (336,011)
(1,929) (344,976) (37,623)
(1,434,582) (156,456)
165,051 29,986,901 3,270,371
2018
171,959 28,485,937 3,106,676
20,547 4,021,665 438,603
(25,526) (4,985,526) (543,721)
(4,979) (963,861) (105,119)
4,244,383 462,892
166,980 31,766,459 3,464,450
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2019 30
2019 2018
(1,434,582) (156,456) 4,244,383 462,892
(601,083) (65,554)
(562,061) (61,298) (713,728) (77,839)
(7.335) (800) (5,443) (594)
(2,003,978) (218,554) 2,924,129 318,906
(975, 230) (106,359)  (1,619,992) (176,676)
2,205,569 240,539 (576,228) (62,843)
347,132 37,858 (207, 150) (22,592)
©) (€)) 7 1
(256,486) (27,972)
3,148 343 (12,498) (1,363)
(423, 366) (46,172) 251,782 27,459
7,449 812 5,141 561
604,457 65,922 755,258 82,368
188,540 20,562 1,012,181 110,388
2,841,576 309,902 3,921,056 427,630
(3,066,977) (334,485)  (5,004,373) (545,777)
(225,401) (24,582)  (1,083,317) (118,147)
(36,861) (4,020) (71,136) (7.758)
751,986 82,012 823,122 89,770
715,125 77,992 751,986 82,012
10 30
2019 73,654 (3,066,977) 3,080,977 87,654
8,033 (334,485) 336,011 9,560
2018 92,501 (5,004,373) 4,985,526 73,654
10,088 (545,777) 543,721 8,033

53/189




EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 30

2006 28 2006 10
1043, 69
1102 2006 11 23
2006 15

54/189



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 30

2013 100
5,000,000

2.1

(a 2018 10

109 2018
39

55/189



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 30

2.1

(a 2018 10

109
2018 10

2018 2018 30
2018 10

109 2.4

56/189



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 30
2.1
(a 2018 10
2018 10
109
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2019 30
3.2
3.2.1
2019 2018 30
2019 2018
29,541,093 98.52 28,585,617 89.99
19,754 0.06
29,560,847 98.58 28,585,617 89.99
2,185,914 6.88
19,655 0.06
2,205,569 6.94
) *
Q) *
29,560,847 98.58 30,791,179 96.93

*0.01
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2019 30
3.2
3.2.1
2019 30
106,441 0.35
JS Comm Bank Foreign Trade Vietnam 619,375 2,190,896 7.31
Military Commercial Bank 2,201,974 2,163,077 7.21
894,722 2.98
114,470 0.38
142 *
452,094 1.51
Vietnam Dairy Products Joint Stock Co 362,984 2,028,394 6.76
1,748,081 5.83
335,130 1.12
FPT Corporation 1,167,486 2,902,367 9.68
Mobile World 380,632 2,067,975 6.90
139,246 0.46
264,380 0.88
519,944 1.74
1,472,371 4.91
Petrovietnam Gas 432,090 1,978,939 6.60
991,996 3.30
84,457 0.27
Vingroup JSC 491,926 2,539,110 8.48
Vinhomes JSC 654,500 2,518,175 8.41
1,019,400 3.40
1,416,681 4.73
672,900 2.24
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919,705 3.07
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19,754 0.06
19,754 0.06
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2019 30
3.2
3.2.1
2018 30
Military Commercial Bank 1,788,865 1,771,457 5.58
3,131,609 9.85
166,378 0.52
261,004 0.82
666,181 2.10
Vietnam Dairy Products Joint Stock Co 402,864 2,371,211 7.46
1,680,118 5.29
322,523 1.02
FPT Corporation 911,593 1,809,352 5.70
1,556,664 4.90
532,430 1.68
1,383,547 4.35
714,561 2.25
2,158,899 6.80
Petrovietnam Gas 381,090 1,890,175 5.95
682,537 2.15
572,340 1.80
Vingroup JSC 554,626 2,337,194 7.36
1,633,119 5.14
790,011 2.49
484,331 1.52
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1,669,976 5.26
28,585,617 89.99
JS Comm Bank Foreign Trade Vietnam 809,375 2,185,906 6.88
8 *
2,185,914 6.88
19,655 0.06
19,655 0.06
2,205,569 6.94
) >
(7) *
30,791,179 96.93

*0.01
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2018  24.8
2019 30 50.2 2018
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5,690,194 6,195,412
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2019 30
3.2
3.2.3
2019 2018 30
2019
476,275 238,850 715,125
29,560,847 29,560,847
416 1 417
476,691 29,799,698 30,276,389
289,488 289,488
289,488 289,488

187,203 29,799,698 29,986,901
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2019 30
3.2
3.2.3
2018
550,060 201,926 751,986
28,585,617 28,585,617
2,205,569 2,205,569
347,132 347,132
106,105 42,397 148,502
656,165 31,382,641 32,038,806
7 7
272,340 272,340
272,347 272,347
383,818 31,382,641 31,766,459
2019 2018

(2.05) (610, 894) (0.86) (269,891)

77/189



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 30
3.2
3.2.3
2019 30
2018 30
2018 10 276,480 2,444 @
3.3

20

2019 2018 30 20

78/189



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 30
3.3
12
2019
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87,654 73,654
2,192 2,298
19,598 20,427
1,461 1,532
3,012 3,324
59,242 54,336
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12,149 12,767
4,871 5,107
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2019

1 | FPT corRP WND 1,167,486 | 1.63 | 1,905,120.91 | 2.49 | 2,902,367.18 | 9.68

2 | viNeroUP JsC WND 491,02 | 4.23| 2,082,252.84 | 5.16 | 2,539,100.67 | 8.47

3| VINHOMES JSC VND 654,500 | 3.63 | 2.376,207.00 | 3.85 | 2,518,175.36 | 8.40
JS COMM BANK FOREIGN

4 [ S o 619,375 | 2.42 | 1.501,415.82 | 3.54 | 2,190,895.62 | 7.3

5 Z&L\I/LSRY COMNERCIAL 2,201,074 | 0.54 | 1,184,901.48 | 0.98 | 2,163,076.57| 7.21

6 | MOBILE WORLD INV VND 380,632 | 1.72 654,074.56 | 5.43 | 2,067,974.81 | 6.90
VIETNAM DAIRY

7| oo Do 362,984 | 6.28 | 2,280,870.86 | 5.50 | 2,028,394.00| 6.76

8 SEEROV'ETNAM GAS JS 432,090 | 3.58 | 1,545,053.88 | 4.58 | 1,978,938.69 | 6.60

g [ [rolUAN JENELRY JsC 314,666 | 2.21 695,552.32 | 3.46 | 1,000,010.61| 3.63

10 meom RETAIL JSC 717,500 | 1.58 | 1.134,561.96 | 1.43 | 1,023,233.50 | 3.41

11 \N/'QDSAN GROUP CORP 287,000 | 3.39 971,535.11 | 3.38 970,680.74 .24

12 %”ET AVIATION JSC 137,940 | 5.55 765,803.87 | 5.93 818,368.72 | 2.73

13 | cemaperT core wND 570,000 | 1.46 831,302.47 | 1.18 672,899.61 | 2.24

14 \S/Q;GON BEER ALCOHO 59,000 |11.72 691,500.37 [11.36 670,073.25 | 2.23

15 [ LONG INVESTHENT 527,767 | 1.10 578,708.60 | 1.20 632,137.98 | 2.11
VIETNAM NATL

16 [ piiie WA 193,660 | 2.76 533,687.00 | 2.61 504,800.94 | 1.68
BK FOR INVESTHENT

17| o ey e 290,003 | 1.47 427,604.85 | 1.70 492,202,091 1.64

18 | vieTTEL POST JvC 80,100 | 6.24 499,603.81 | 5.64 452,003.93 | 1.51

19 | BAOVIET HLDGS WND 129,000 | 4.28 552,661.29 | 3.22 415,734.60 | 1.39
VIETNAM TECHNOLGICAL

20 | a5 o Bt 400,000 | 1.43 571,655.84 | 1.01 402,412.75 | 1.34
PETROVIETNAM POWER

21 | oot 720,000 | 0.68 489,570.52 | 0.56 400,172.33 | 1.33

22 | A0 XAV GROUP JSC 523,320 | 0.85 445,692.92 | 0.75 393,448.27 | 1.3
KHANG DIEN HOUSE

23 | TRADING AND INV JSC 352,484 | 0.71 249,245.49 | 1.10 387,261.60 | 1.29
VND

2 Cﬁg PHAT GROUP JSC 404,303 | 1.04 419,218.77 | 0.95 382,354.63 | 1.28

g5 | REFRIGERATION ELEC 203,889 | 1.70 347,135.02 | 1.64 335,120.91 | 1.12

ENGINEERING VND

92/189



EDINETOOOO

O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26 | oo1 SEOURITIES COR 170,000 | 1.41 240,469.29 | 0.99 168,461.87 |  0.56
27 | Q0 St I KT 133,000 | 1.33 176,292.30 | 1.05 139,246.01 |  0.46
28 | FAT DICITAL RETAIL 58,650 | 3.37 197,924.90 | 1.95 114,469.84 |  0.38
20 | e A 45,000 | 2.52 113,282.43 | 2.37 106,441.19 |  0.35
30 [ oiDY INSURANCE CORP 100,770 | 0.96 97,008.83 | 1.03 104,199.91 | 0.3
g [ ETVAIAIRLINES JSC 70,000 | 1.80 126,108.74 | 1.45 101,335.63 |  0.34
2 [l A o 65,000 | 2.87 186,465.37 | 1.48 95,917.71 |  0.32
33 [ JRaPHACO JOINT STOCK 31,305 | 4.38 136,969.85 | 2.70 84,433.12 | 0.28
34 [ [N CONSUNER CORP 26,450 | 3.20 84,550.41 | 3.19 84,330.03 | 0.28
35 [ R AE A oM 48,010 | 1.22 58,395.70 | 1.03 49,644.12 | 0.17
36 [P o 50,000 | 0.75 37,556.25 | 0.75 37,376.13 | 0.12
a7 | S0 F07EN FOoDs 17,500 | 2.68 46,924.80 | 1.31 22,996.55 | 0.08
38 | MAI LINH GROUP VAD 509,434 | 3.20 | 1,674,853.37 | 0.04 10,754.01 |  0.07
39 Y;AEE% gg’(\l:S$EBCT|ON 98 .14 111.60 | 1.14 111.47 0.00
4o | COTECCONS CONS JSC 6| 8.97 53.79 | 4.09 24.56 | 0.00
4 | DHE PHARNACEUTICAL 6| 4.37 26.20 | 4.04 24.25 | 0.00
a | A0 MINH INSURANCE of 1.23 11.06 | 1.09 0.77|  0.00
43 | e 7| 0.03 6.52 | 0.01 6.38| 0.00
as | PR L o 10 | 0.87 8.66 | 0.60 6.03| 0.00
45 [ 1o THIONS TN 13| 0.72 9.32 | 0.45 5.90|  0.00
g6 [ YTV EXP-IIP COM 7| 062 434 | 071 a.98| 0.00
47 ‘E;;N\I-/IN'\;INH PLASTICS 2 .16 2.32 | 2.21 4.41 0.00
a8 | PEFOETA 3| 1.16 3.49 | 0.78 2.35|  0.00
49 HOA SEN GROUP VND 5 .03 5.16 | 0.29 1.44 0.00
50 [ iProoNG PAST FERRY 2| 3.14 6.27 | 0.48 0.95| 0.00
51 | FOANG AN GIA LAY 2| 0.0 1.87 [ 0.20 0.3 | 0.00
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 30 September 2019

2019 2018
Notes Uss USss
Income
Dividend income 562,061 T13,728
Interest income 7,335 5,443
Met foreign exchange loss (294,827 (637,819)
Met change in fair value on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 (864,149 6,191,162
Gain on disposal of financial assets, available-for-sale - 122,832
Total net (loss)/income (589,580) _ 6,395,346
Expenses
Management fee 14 26,129 29,598
Investment management fee 14 232,366 263,093
Performance fee 14 - 1,819,646
Trustee fee 14 17,419 19,732
Custodian and administrator fee 14 241,780 269,684
Audit fee 42,000 43,268
Distributor fee 14 145,129 164,433
Agent company fee 14 58,063 63,773
Registrar fee 14 3,000 3,000
Professional fee 38,494 31,378
Other expenses 40,622 42,441
Total operating expenses 345,002 2,752,046
(Loss)/profit before income tax (1,434,582) 3,643,300
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets
- Fair value gains 12 - 601,083
Other comprehensive income - 601,083
Total comprehensive (loss)income (1,434,582) 4,244,383

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

7

94/189



VIETNAM FUND

(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2019

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets, available-for-sale

Due from broker

Receivables

Total assets

Equity
MNet assets attributable to unitholders

Total equity

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
Pa[ﬁiiles

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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2019 2018

Uss USss
715,125 751,986
29,560,847 28,585,617
- 2,205,569

- 347,132

417 148,502
30,276,389 32,038,806
29,986,901 31,766,459
29,986,901 31,766,459
- 7

289,488 272,340
289,488 272,347
30,276,389 32,038,806




VIETNAM FUND

(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019

2019
Net assets attributable to unitholders at the
beginning of the year

Issuance of units
Redemption of units

Met decrease from unit transactions
Total comprehensive loss

Net assets attributable to unitholders at
the end of the year

2018
Met assets attributable to unitholders at the
beginning of the year

[ssuance of units
Redemption of units

Met decrease from unit transactions
Total comprehensive income

MNet assets attributable to unitholders at
the end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Number of
Units Uss
166,980 31,766,459
15,829 2,736,001
{17,758) (3,080,977
(1,929) (344,976)
- (1,434,582)
165,051 29,986,901
171,959 28,485,937
20,547 4,021,665
(25,526) (4,985,526)
(4,979) (963,861)
- 4,244 383
166,980 31,766,459
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)
Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities Uss Uss
Total comprehensive (loss)/income {1,434,582) 4,244 383
Adjustments for:
Met change in fair value reserve on financial assets, available-

for-sale - {601,083)
Dividend income (562,061) (713,728)
Interest income {7,335 (5,443}
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (2,003,978) 2,924,129
Changes in operating assets and lisbilities:
Financial assets at fair value through prafit or loss (975,230) (1,619,992)
Financial assets, available-for-sale 2,205,569 (576,228)
Due from broker 347,132 {207,150)
Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss (7 7
Due to broker - (256,486)
Payables 3,148 {12,498)
Cash {used in)/generated from operations (423,366) 251,782
Interest received T7.449 5,141
Dividends received G4, 457 755,258
MNet cash infllow from operating activities 158,540 1,012,181
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from units issued 2,841,576 3,921,056
Payments for units redeemed (3,066,977) (5.004,373)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (225,401) {1,083,317)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (36,861) (71,136)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the vear 751,986 §23,122
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the yvear 715,125 751,986
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Payments for units Redemption
1 'El!r-l;:;ber red 1 of umits 30 SEJ'SD;mIJ-:r
Uss Uss

2019: Redemption
payable to unitholders 73,654 (3,066,977) 3,080,977 87,654
2018: Redemption
payable to unitholders 92,501 (5,004,373) 4,985,526 73654

The aecomparying notes form an integral part of these finaneial starements,

10
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 September 2019

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.

GENERAL

Vietnam Fund, (a sub trust of FC Global) (the “Fund™), a Cavman Islands Trust, was constituted in
Cayman Islands on 28 August 2006 and commenced operations on 5 October 2006, The address of
the Fund's registered office is Caledonian House, 69 Dr. Roy's Drive, P.O. Box 1043, Grand
Cayman KY1-1102, Cayman Islands. The Fund registered with the Cayman Islands Monetary
Authority on 23 November 2006 and also registered with the Japanese Financial Services Agency
on 135 September 2006.

The investment objective of the Fund is to derive income and long-term capital appreciation through
the acquisition of equity and equity-related securities, including convertible bonds, warrants and
bonds with warrants and fixed income securities issued by companies established in Vietnam (herein
after “Vietnam Companies™) or companies that are listed on Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
(“HOSE"™) or Hanoi Stock Exchange (“HNX") or that have operations in Vietnam or business
exposures to the Vietnamese economy and are listed on any stock exchanges (herein after “Vietnam
Related Companies™) or funds investing in such securities and options related to such securities or
cash and cash equivalents including money market instruments such as treasury bills, at a reasonable
level of risk.

FC Investments Ltd (the *Manager™), a Cayman Islands company, acts as the fund manager. The
Manager has appointed Capital Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the “Investment Manager”), a
Japanese company, to provide investment advisory and fund management services to the Fund.

In accordance with the Master Trust Deed, G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™), a Cayman
Islands company, provides trustee and registrar services to the Fund and has delegated certain of its
custodian functions to Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited and certain of its registrar and transfer
agent functions to SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited. SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the
“Administrator™), a related company of the Trustee, provides fund administration services and
delegate registrar services to the Fund. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited (the “Custodian™), a
related company of the Trustee, provides delegate custodian services to the Fund.

The Manager has appointed Aizawa Securities Co. Ltd, (the “Distributor™) as the agent company
for the manager and disiributor of units in Japan. The agent company and distributor was
incorporated as a joint stock company under the Commercial Code of Japan.

11

98/189



EDINETOOOO

O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

GENERAL (continued)

The Fund has a finite life of 100 years from the date of the revised Supplemental Trust Deed on 1
September 2013. In the event in which the Net Asset Value (“NAV™) of the Fund at any time falls
below US$5,000,000, the Fund may be terminated by the Manager. In the event that the Fund is
terminated, the Manager must publish (or cause the distributor to publish) or notify (or cause the
distributor to notify) all unitholders and beneficiaries of such termination and any other information
as required under the applicable law forthwith upon such termination.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statemnents have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRS"). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities, except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the Manager to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Fund's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where and assumptions and estimates are significant to financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4,

{a) Standards and amendments fo existing standards effective on 1 October 2018

FRS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, It addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities and replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in FES 39,

Classification and measurement of debt assets is driven by the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt
instrument is measured at amortised cost if the objective of the business model is to hold the
financial asset for the collection of the contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows under
the instrument solely represent payments of principal and interest (“SPPI"). A debt instrument is
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the objective of the business model
is to hold the financial asset both to collect contractual cash flows from SPPI and to sell. All other
debt instruments must be recognised at fair value through profit or loss. An entity may however, at
initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at fair value through profit
or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency.
Derivative and equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless, for equity
instruments not held for trading, an irrevecable option is taken to measure at fair value through other
comprehensive income, FRS 109 also introduces a new expected credit loss (“ECL"™) impairment
model.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
{a) Standards and amendments to existing standards effective on 1 Qctober 2018 (continued)

The Fund has adopted the new standard retrospectively from 1 October 2018, in line with the
transition provision permitted under the standards. Comparatives for financial vear ended 2018 are
not restated and the Fund has recognised any difference between the carrving amounts at 30

September 2018 and 1 October 2018 in the opening net assets attributable to unitholders excluding
fair value reserves.

The accounting policies for financial instruments under FRS 109 is as disclosed in Note 2.4,

+  Classification and measurement of financial assets
For financial assets held by the Fund on 1 October 2018, management has assessed the business
models that are applicable on that date to these assets so as to classify them into the appropriate

categories under FRS 109, Material reclassifications resulting from management’s assessment are
disclosed below.

Net asseis
attributahble to
Fair unitholders
Financial Assets value excluding fair
FVTPL AFS reserves  value reserves
USss Uss Uss USss

Balance as at 30 September 2018 — before

adoption of FRS 109 28,585,617 2,205,569 535733 31,230,726
Reclassify investments from available-for-

sale (“AFS") to fair value through profit or

loss (“FVTPL™) 2,205,569 (2,205,569) (535,733 535,733
Balance as at 1 October 20158 — after
adoption of FRS 109 30,791,186 - - 31,766,459
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{a) Standards and amendments to existing standards effective on 1 Ocrober 2018 (continued)
*  Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)
(i) Reclassification of financial assets from AFS to FVTPL

[nvestments amounting to US3$2,205,569 were reclassified from AFS category to
FVTPL category. These investments are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis is neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor
held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets. For the
financial year ended 30 September 2019, fair value loss related to these investments
were recognised in the profit or loss.

»  (Classification and measurement of financial assets

(ii) [mpairment of financial assets

The Fund has the following type of financial assets subject to the expected credit loss
impairment model under FRS 109:

» (Cash and cash equivalents
* Trade and other receivables

The impairment methodology under FRS 109 for each of these classes of financial
assets are different. The impairment methodology for each of these classes of
financial assets under FRS 109 is as disclosed in Note 2.4(h) and Note 3.4.

(b} Standards and amendments lo existing standards effective after 1 October 2018 and have not
been early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 October 2018, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial
statements. None of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the
Fund.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured wsing the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Fund operates (“the functional currency™). The financial statements are
presented in United States Dollars (*US$™), which is the Fund's functional currency.

{b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than US$ are translated into US$ using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Currency translation arising from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the closing rates at the reporting date are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Foreign currency assets and liabilities held at reporting date are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the Statement of Financial Position
date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and financial liabilities carried at
fair value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
“net change in fair value on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss™.

2.3 Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is cstablished.

2.4 Financial assets and liabilities

The accounting for financial assets and liabilities before 1 October 2018 under FES 39 are as
follows:

{a) Classificarion

The Fund elassifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The Fund classifies its investments in financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets and liabilities were acquired, Management determines the classification of its
financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. The designation of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss is irrevocable.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Financial assets and liabilities tinued
fa) Classification {continued)

(i)Financial assets and liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss

The Fund categorises its financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as
“financial assets and liabilities held for trading™. A financial asset or liability is classified as held
for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives are also categorised as “held for trading” unless they are designated as hedges. Assets
and liabilities in this category are classified as current assets and liabilities if they are either held for
trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date,

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing
later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets, Loan and
receivables are presented as “receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents™ on the reporting date,

(iii) Financial assets, available-for-sale

Financial assets, available-for-sale are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

(b} Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date - the date on which
the Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment.

Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, On sale of an
investment, the differences between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss. Any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
asset is reclassified to profit or loss. Realised gains or losses from investment transactions are
recorded on the First-In-First-Out (“FIFO™) method.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Financial assets and labilities (continued)

fe) Initial measurement

Financial instruments categorised at fair value through profit or loss, are measured initially at fair
value, with transaction costs for such instruments, being recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

{d) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities, both available-for-sale and at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair values of financial assets and liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss
including the effects of currency translation, interest and dividends, are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income when the changes arise,

Interest and dividend income on financial assets, available-for-sale are recognised separately in
income. Changes in the fair values of available-for-sale equity securities (i.¢. non-monetary items)
are recognised in the fair value reserve, together with the related currency translation differences in
the Statement of Financial Position,

(e} Impairment
(i) Loans and receivables

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey and
default or significant delay in payments are objective evidence that these financial assets are
impaired. The amount of the allowance is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The amount of the allowance for impairment is recognised in profit or loss,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
fe) Impairment (continued)
(i1} Financial assets, available-for-sale

In addition to the objective evidence of impairment described in Note 2.4(e)(i), a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity security below its cost and the disappearance of an
active trading market for the security are indicators that the security is impaired.

If evidence of impairment exists, the cumulative loss that was recognised in the fair value reserve
is transferred to the profit or loss. The cumulative loss is measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayments and amortisation) and the current fair value less
any impairment loss previously recognised as an expense. The impairment losses recognised as an
expense on equity securities are not reversed through profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of an equity security classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event ocewrring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

The accounting for financial assets and liabilities from 1 October 2018 under FRS 109 are as
follows:

i) Classification
(i) Assets

The Fund classifies its investments based on both the Fund’s business model for managing those
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of
financial assets is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily
focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the assets” performance and to
make decisions. The Fund has not taken the option to irrevocably designate any equity securities as
fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash flows of the Fund's debt
securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose
of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale,
The collection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Fund's business model's
ohjective. Consequently, all investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 September 2019

(Continued)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Financial asseis and liabilities {continued)

{f) Classification {continved)
(ii) Liabilities

The Fund makes short sales in which a borrowed security is sold in anticipation of a decline in the
market value of that security, or it may use short sales for various arbitrage transactions. Short sales
are held for trading and are consequently classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets
or liabilities as fair value through profit or loss.

The Fund’s policy requires the Investment Manager and the Trustee to evaluate the information
about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with other related financial
information.

{2) Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date — the date on which the
Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as
incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On sale of an
investment, the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss. Realised gains or losses from investment transactions are recorded on the FIFO
method.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the *financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within net changes in fair value of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which they arize.
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(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
(Continued)

2.4 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

{h) Impairment

Financial assets

The Fund assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.4 details how the Fund determines whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Fund applies the simplified approach permitted by the FRS 109, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the trade receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents, the general 3 stage approach is applied. Credit loss allowance is
based on 12-month expected credit loss if there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition of the assets. If there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
lifetime expected credit loss will be calculated and recognised.

(i) Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning
of the reporting period.

2.5 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Provisions for other liabilities and charges are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.

2.6 Fair value estimation of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets, such as trading securities, are based
on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets and
financial liabilities held by the Fund is the last traded price. For the purpose of calculating the
published WAV per unit, the fair value of financial instruments is based on last traded price as set
forth in the Fund's Offering Memorandum.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Fair value estimation of financial and financial liabilities (continued

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market such as unlisted
securities are determined by using valuation techniques. The Fund uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation
techniques used include the use of corporate recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow
analysis and other valuation fechniques commonly used by market participants making the
maximum use of market input and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs,

The trading volume in respect of the securities listed on the Vietnam stock exchanges may be
substantially less than that of the world's leading stock markets. In addition, the valuation and
recoverability of the securities in these financial statements are based on conditions prevailing and
information available at 30 September 2019, updated for material changes to the date of these
financial statements. The ongoing economic uncertainties in the countries in the region will continue
to impact on the assessment of such valuations,

The fair values of current financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their carrying amounts.

2.7 Taxation
The Fund is domiciled in the Cayman [slands.

Under current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, transfer, sales or other Cayman
Islands taxes payable by the Fund. The Fund intends generally to conduct its affairs such that it will
not be subject to income tax in any jurisdiction. The Fund may incur withholding tax imposed by
certain countries on investment income. Such income would be recorded gross of withholding tax
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Withholding tax would be shown as a separate line item
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

In accordance with FRS 12 - Income Taxes, the Fund is required to recognise a tax liability when it
is possible that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Fund's

capital gains sourced from such foreign countries, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full
knowledge of the facts and circumstances.
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Taxation {continued)

The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant tax authorities
using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted law is applied to offshore
investment funds. This creates uncertainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be
paid by the Fund, Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities, management considers
all relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihood of
payments, including any formal or informal tax practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As of 30 September 2019 and 2018, the Fund has reviewed and evaluated its cumulative tax
positions in all major jurisdictions and has determined that there are no uncertain tax positions,
While this represents the management’s best estimate, this determination could differ from the
amount ultimately payable.

2.8 Pavables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value, subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. All expenses are recognised on an accrual basis,

2.9 Due from broker

Amounts due from broker represent receivables for securities sold that have been contracted for but
not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date.

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
At each reporting date, the Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Fund shall measure the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default in payments are all considered indicators
that a loss allowance may be required. If the credit risk increases to the point that it is considered to
be credit impaired, interest income will be caleulated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted
for the loss allowance. A significant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any
contractual payment which is more than 30 days past due. Any contractual payment which is more
than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 etting financial instromen

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Fund or

the counterparty.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances held with financial institutions which are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.12 Units

The Fund issues one class of redeemable units in USE, which are redeemable at the holder’s option
and are classified as equity.

The redeemable units are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the holder exercises the right to put the units back to the Fund.

Should the terms or conditions of the redeemable units change such that they do not comply with
the strict criteria contained in FRS 32 *Financial Instruments: Presentation’, the redeemable units
would be reclassified to a financial liability from the date the instrument ceases to meet the criteria.
The financial liability would be measured at the instrument’s fair value at the date of reclassification.
Any difference between the carrying value of the equity instrument and fair value of the liability on
the date of reclassification would be recognised as equity.

Units are issued and redeemed at the holder’s option at prices based on the Fund's NAV per unit at
the time of issue or redemption. The Fund’s NAV per unit is calculated by dividing the net assets
attributable to unitholders with the total number of outstanding units. In accordance with the
provisions of the Fund’s Offering Memorandum, investment positions are valued based on the last
traded market price for the purpose of determining the NAV per unit for subscriptions and
redemptions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Fund is invelved in investment trading and its activities expose it to a variety of risks but not
limited to market risk (including price risk, interest rate risk and cwrrency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The overall responsibility for the implementation of the Fund's financial risk
management policies lies with the Investment Manager, who, among other things, focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Fund.

The Fund may undertake hedging only to the extent that it is practical taking into account the costs
involved and the timing of investments. Fecognising the unpredictability of financial markets, the
Investment Manager seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Fund by adopting restrictions and policies relating to the activities and investment of assets of the
Fund. The Fund has laid down policies and procedures for risk containment by ensuring that the
portfolio risks are well diversified through appropriate portfolic mix and strict adherence to
investment restrictions as set out in the Fund’s Offering Memorandum, These policies are approved
by the Manager of the Fund.

Derivative financial instruments may be used from time to either create an exposure to an underlying
instrument, or to leverage the portfolio within acceptable constraints. The Fund’s overall market
positions are monitored on a daily basis by the Investment Manager. The Fund did not hold any
derivative instruments as at 30 September 2019. As at 30 September 2018, the Fund held derivative
instruments as disclosed in Note 3.2.1.

3.2 Market risk
Market risk is the risk of potential adverse changes to the value of financial instruments because of
changes in market conditions such as interest rate and currency rate movements and volatility in

securify prices,

At reporting date, the Fund’s market risk comprises three main components, namely changes in
actual market prices of investments (“price risk™), interest rates and foreign currency movements,
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continued)
3.2.1 Price risk

The Fund is exposed to price risk from its investment in listed equities and related derivatives,

The Fund’s investments are susceptible to price risk arising from uncertainties about fiture prices
of these financial instruments. In the case of its investments in Vietnam, it involves certain
considerations and risks not typically associated with investments in more developed market. In
addition to their smaller size, lesser liquidity and greater volatility, the Vietnamese securities
markets are less developed and there is often substantially less publicly available information about
Vietnamese issuers than there is in developed markets.

Price risk represents the potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in
the face of price movements. The nature of the Fund’s activities directly results in market risk
exposures being taken so as to maximise returns,

The table below summarises the Fund's overall market risk exposure of investments as at 30
September 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
% of met % of net
assets assets
attributable attributable
to to
Fair value unitholders Fair value unitholders
USs USS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Listed securities 29,541,093 98.52 28,585,617 £9.99
Unlisted securities 19,754 0.06 - -
29,560,847 98.58 28,585,617 89,99
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(Continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.1 Price risk {continued)

The table below summarises the Fund’s overall market risk exposure of investments as at 30

September 2019 and 2018:
2019
% of net
assels
attributable
to
Fair value unitholders
USS

Financial assets, available-for-sale

Listed securities -
Unlisted securities -

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives -

Total investments 29,560,847 98.58

2018
% of net
assets
attributable
to
Fair value unitholders
USS
2,185,914 6.88
19,655 0.06
2,205,569 6.94
@
(7 *
30,791,179 26.93

* Denotes less than 0.01

The Vietnam Stock Index (the “VNINDEX™) is a capitalisation-weighted index of all the companies
listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange and has geographical focus similar to the Fund. However,
the Manager does not manage the Fund’s investment strategy to track the Index.
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{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Market risk {continued}

3.2.1 Price risk {continued)

The table below and overleal summarises the Fund's overall concentration risk exposure of
investments as at 30 September 2019:

MNominal Fair % of
Holdings Value NAV
Uss

Listed securities

Vietnam
Agricultural Machinery - 106,441 0.35
Banking
- I8 Comm Bank Foreign Trade Vietnam 619,375 2,190,856 7.31
- Military Commercial Bank 2,201,974 2,163,077 7.21
- Others - 894,722 298
Communications Equipment - 114,470 0.38
Construction - 142 *
Courier Services - 452,004 1.51
Food and Drink
= Vietnam Dairy Products Joint Stock Co 362,984 2,028,394 6.76
- Others - 1,748,081 5.83
Home Improvements - 335,130 1.12
Information and Communication
- FPT Corporation 1167486 2,902,367 9.68
- Mobile World 380,632 2,067,975 6.90
Infrastructure - 139,246 0.46
Institutional Brokerage - 264,380 0.88
Insurance - 319,944 1.74
Manufacturing - 1,472,371 4.91
il and Gas
- Petrovietnam Gas 432,090 1,978,939 6.60
- Others - 31,996 3.30
Pharmaceuticals - 84,457 0.27
Real Estate
= Vingroup JSC 491,926 2,539,110 §.48
- Vinhomes JSC 634,500 2,518,175 841
- Others - 1,019,400 3.40
Real Estate Owners & Developers - 1,416,681 4.73
Shipping - 672,900 2.24
Transportation - 419,705 3.07

Total listed securities 29,541,093 98.52
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{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.1 Price risk fcontinued)

Nominal Fair %o of
Holdings Value NAY
Uss
Unlisted securities
Vietnam
Transportation - 19,754 0.06
Total unlisted securities 19,754 0.06
Total financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 29,560,847 98.58

* Denotes less than (.01
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2019

(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continued)
3.2.1 Price risk fcontinued)

The table below and overleaf summarises the Fund’s overall concentration risk exposure of

investments as at 30 September 2018:

Listed securities
Vietnam
Banking
- Military Commercial Bank
= Others
Communications Equipment
Construction
Entertainment Content
Food and Drink
= Vietnam Dairy Products Joint Stock Co
= Others
Home Improvements
Information and Communication
- FPT Corporation
- Others
Infrastructure
Institutional Brokerage
Insurance
Manufacturing
Qil and Gas
- Petrovietnam Gas
- Others
Pharmaceuticals
Real Estate
- Vingroup JSC
- Others
Eeal Estate Owners & Developers
Shipping
Transportation

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

29

116/189

Nominal
Holdings

1,788,865

402,864

911,593

-

381,090

554,626

Fair Yo of
Value NAY
USS
1,771,457 5.58
3,131,609 9.85
166,378 0.52
261,004 0.82
666,181 2.10
2,371,211 746
1,680,118 5.29
322,523 1.02
1,809,352 5.70
1,556,664 4.90
532,430 1.68
1,383,547 435
714,561 2.25
2,158,899 6.80
1,890,175 595
682,537 2.15
572,340 1.80
2.337.194 7.36
1,633,119 5.14
790,011 2.49
484,331 1.52
1,669,976 5.26
28,585,617 89.99
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(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.1 Price risk (continued)

MNominal Fair % of
Holdings Value NAV
Uss

Financial assets, available-for-sale
Listed securities
Vietnam

Banking

- J5 Comm Bank Foreign Trade Vietnam 809,375 2,185,906 6.88

Construction - 5 *
Total listed securities 2,185,914 6.88
Unlisted securities
Vieinam

Transportation - 19,655 0.06
Total unlisted securities 19,655 0.06
Total financial assets, available-for-sale 2,205,569 6.94
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss
Derivatives

FX contract (7 *
Total financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss (T) *
Total investments 30,791,179 96.93

* Denotes less than 0.01

30

117/189



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.1 Price risk fcontinued)

The table below summarises the sensitivity of the Fund’s net assets attributable to unitholders to
equity price movements, including the effect of movements in foreign currency exchange rates on
equity prices, as at 30 September 2019 and 2018.

FRS 107 requires management to identify a relevant risk variable that is most reflective of the risk
of the markets in which the Fund invests in. Hence, the analysis is based on the assumptions that
the VININDEX increased by 37.8% (2018: 39.4%) and decreased by 24.4% (2018: 24.8%) as at 30
September 2019, with all other variables held constant and that the fair value of the Fund’s
underlying investments moved according to their historical correlation with the VNINDEX. This
represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the VININDEX, having
regard to the historical volatility of the VNINDEX,

The historical correlation of the Fund’s underlying investments with movements in VNINDEX is
50.2% (2018: 49.5%) of the index gain as at 30 September 2019. The impact below arises from the
reasonable possible change in the fair value of the Fund’s underlying investments.

2019 2018
Uss USS
Effect on net assets attributable to unitholders of an
increase in the index 5,690,194 6,195,412
Effect on net assets attributable to unitholders of an
decrease in the index (3,673,036) (3,899,651)

The sensitivity analysis is prepared using the monthly data of the Fund since its inception. The
presentation of the sensitivity analysis is based upon the portfolio composition as at 30 September
2019 and 2018 and the historical correlation of the securities comprising the portfolio to the
VNINDEX. The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and the correlation thereof to the
VNINDEX, is expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as at 30
September 2019 and 2018 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets
attributed to unitholders of future movements in the level to the VNINDEX,
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{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continuned)

3.2 2 Interest rafe risk

Interest rate risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of markets interest
rates on the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities and future cash flows.

As at 30 September 2019, the Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk is limited to its cash and cash
equivalents, which is 2% (2018: 2%) of the total assets. The Fund does not have any significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. At the reporting date, the Fund’s excess cash and cash
equivalents are held with approved reputable financial institutions in the form of overnight and
short-term instruments all with maturities of less than one month.

As at 30 September 2019, if interest rates on cash and cash equivalents increase or decrease by 50
(2018: 50) basis points over the next one year with all other variables held constant, the increase or
decrease in the profit or loss after tax would be TJS$3,576 (2018: US$3,760) as a result of higher or
lower net interest income. This sensitivity analysis summarises the estimated effect of changes in
interest rates at the reporting date which may not be representative of the exposure for each type of
cash and cash equivalents,

3.2.3 Currency risk

The Fund holds assets denominated in currencies other than the USS, the functional currency. It is
therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities denominated in other currencies
will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. As stated in the offering memorandum, the Fund's
policy is not to enter into any eurrency hedging transactions. As per cash deposits, the Fund's policy
is to convert foreign currency deposits that are in excess of investment requirements into the
functional currency.
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3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.3 Currency risk {continued)
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The table below and overleaf summarises the Fund’'s exposure to key foreign currencies from its
monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities, expressed in 1TSS, at 30 September 2019 and

2018:
USS VND Tatal
USS Uss Uss
2019
Assetls
Cash and cash equivalenis 476,275 238,850 715,125
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 29,560,847 29,560,847
Receivables 416 1 417
Total assets 476,691 29799698 30,276,389
Liabilities
Payables 289,488 - 285,488
Total liabilities 189,488 - 289,458
Net currency exposure 187,203 29,799,698 29,986,901
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For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.3 Currency risk {continued)

USS VND Taotal
USS USS Uss
2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 550,060 201,926 751,986
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 28,585,617 28,585,617
Financial assets, available-for-sale - 2,205,569 2,205,569
Due from broker - 347,132 347,132
Receivables 106,105 42,397 148,502
Total assets 656,165 31,382,641 32,038,806
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 7 - 7
Payables 272,340 - 272,340
Total liabilities 272,347 - 272,347
Net currency exposure 383,818 31,382,641 31,766,459

Investments, which are the significant item in the Statement of Financial Position, are exposed to
currency risk and price risk. Price risk sensitivity analysis includes the impact of currency risk on
non-monetary investments. Consequently, currency risk sensitivity is prepared and disclosed for
monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities, The table overleaf shows the sensitivity of the
Fund's monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities to foreign currency exposure should the
currencies increase or decrease against the Fund's functional currency with all other variables held
constant,

34

121/189



EDINETOOOO

O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.3 Currency risk fcontinued)

2019 2018

Impact on Impact on

net assets net assets

Reasonable attributahle Reasonahble attributable

possible to possible to

changes unitholders changes unitholders

USsS Uss

Currency

YHND {2.05)% {610,894) (0.86)% (269.891)

As at 30 September 2019, the Fund had no foreign currency contracts.

Foreign currency contract as at 30 September 2018 is as follows:

Amount Amouni
bought sold  Unrealised loss
Settlement date USss
2 October 2018 JPY 276,480 USD 2444 (7}

3.3 Liguidity risk

The Fund's liquidity risk arises mainly from redemptions of redeemable units. The Fund invests the
majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an active market. Mo more than 20% of the
MNAV may be invested in investments which are not listed on an exchange or for which prices are
not readily available.

The Fund has the ability to borrow in the short-term for the purposes of meeting redemptions and
short-term bridging requirements.

To ensure continuity of funding, dedicated personnel are responsible for monitoring the Fund’s
liquidity position on a daily basis to ensure that sufficient cash resources and liquid assets are
available to meet liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Fund may, from time, invest in derivative contracts traded over the counter, which are not traded
in an organised market and may be illiquid.
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{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Liguidity risk (continued)

As a result, the Fund may not be able to liquidate promptly its investments in these instruments at
an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirements or to respond to specific events
such as deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer.

As at 30 September 2019 and 2018, there is no single investor who holds more than 20% of units in
the Fund.

The table below analyses the Fund’s financial liabilities and net assets attributable to unitholders
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months approximate their carrying values as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

Less than

3 months Total
2019 USS USss
Trades and other payables 289,488 289,488
Met assets attributable to unitholders 29,986,901 20,986,901

30,276,389 30,276,389

2018

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 7 7

Trades and other payables 272,340 272,340

Net assets attributable to unitholders 31,766,459 31,766,459
32,038,806 32,038,806

3.4 Credit risk

The Manager with whom the Fund has entrusted the management of its funds has policies in place
to ensure that investment transactions are carried out only with approved counterparties and are
within approved trading units. The Fund spreads its transactions over a number of counterparties
such that it is not unduly dependent on any single counterparty. Cash deposits are kept only at banks
which the Manager has approved.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Credit risk (continued}

The Fund takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
ameunts in full when due, including transactions with counterparties such as issuers, brokers,
custodians and banks.

All transactions in quoted securities are settled / paid upon delivery using approved brokers. The
risk of default is deemed to be low, as delivery of securities is only made once the broker has
received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the
broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meets its obligation.

The Fund's exposure to credit risk arises mainly from its bank balances and assets held with
custodians and counterparties. The table below summarises the credit rating of banks, custodians
and counterparties with whom the Fund’s cash balances and assets are held as at 30 September 2019
and 2018.

%o of NAV 2019 % of NAV 2018
Credit rating Credit rating

Brown Brothers Harriman
& Co. (“BBH & Co.™) 100.96 A+ (Fitch) 99.30 At (Fitch)

On 1 September 2013, G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited were appointed as Trustee for the Fund. As
Trustee, they have appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited as its Custodian. Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited have, in turn, appointed BBH & Co., as their global sub-custodian, The
cash is ultimately held at BBH & Co., with cash being held at BBH & Co., as Banker,

The Fund has agreed in certain circumstances to subscribe to the BBH & Co. Cash Management
Service (CMS) which invests idle demand deposit balances in unrestricted overnight deposit
instruments with various financial institutions. In addition, money is also temporarily held for short
periods at BBH & Co."s Grand Cayman branch when money for redemptions or fees and expenses
are being paid out of the Fund. Such deposits may be subject to both sovereign actions in the
Jurisdiction of the deposit institution and sovereign actions in the jurisdiction of the currency,
including but not limited to freeze, seizure, or diminution. In any case, the risk associated with the
repayment of principal and payment of interest on such instruments by the institution with whom
the deposit is ultimately placed will be exclusively for the Fund’s accounts.
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{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at
default and loss given default. Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking
information in determining any expected credit loss. At 30 September 2019 and 2018, all
receivables, amount due from brokers and cash and short-term deposits are held with counterparties
with a credit rating of A+ or higher and are due to be settled within 1 week. Management consider
the probability of default to be close to zero as the counterparties have a strong capacity to meet
their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised
based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to
the Fund.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of the financial
assets.

3.5 Capital risk

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unitholders. The amount of
net assets attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject
to daily subseriptions and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders. The Fund’s objective when
managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for unitholders and benefits for other stake holders and to maintain a strong capital base to
support the development of the investment activities of the Fund.

3.6 Fair value estimation

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

*  (uoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

* Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is derived from prices) (Level 2).

# Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3.6 Fair value estimation (continued)

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund's financial assets and liabilities

(by class) measured at fair value at 30 September 2019 and 2018:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USss USsS Uss Uss

2019
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Listed securities 29.541,093 - - 29,541,093
Unlisted securities - - 19,754 19,754
Total assets 29,541,093 - 19,754 29,560,847
2018
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Listed securities 28,585,617 - 28,585,617
Financial assets, available-for-sale
Listed securities 2,185,914 - - 2,185,914
Unlisted securities - - 19,655 19,655
Total assets 30,771,531 - 19,655 30,791,186
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives - (N - (7)
Total liabilities - {7) - (7T)
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{Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.6 Fair value estimation (continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety, If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurernent in its entirety requires
judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Fund. The
Fund considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for the years ended 30 September 2019 and 2018,

As at 30 September 2019 and 2018, a sensitivity analysis for Level 3 positions were not presented,
as it was deemed that the impact of reasonable changes in inputs would not be significant.

The table below presents the changes in Level 3 instruments:

Financial
assets, fair
value through
profit or loss Total
Uss USS
2019
Beginning of the year - -
Adoption of FRS 109* 19,655 19,653
19,655 19,655
Gains recognised in net change in fair value on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 99 99
End of the year 19,754 19,754
Change in unrealised gains for Level 3
assets held at the end of the year 99 99
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3.6 Fair value estimation (continued)
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There are no level 3 instruments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as

Total

19,655
(19.633)

20,172

(517)
19,655

at 30 September 2018.
Financial
assets,
available-
for-sale
2019
Beginning of the year 19,655
= Adoption of FRS 109* (19,655)
End of the year -
Change in unrealised gains for Level 3
assets held at the end of the year -
2018
Beginning of the year 20,172
Losses recognised in other comprehensive income (517
End of the year 19,655
Change in unrealised losses for Level 3
assets held at the end of the vear (517

517

*: See Note 2.1(a) for details of reclassification as at 1 October 2018 on the adoption of FRS 109,

3.7 Offsetting financial instroments

As at 30 September 2019 and 2018, the Fund was not subject to any master netting arrangements,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Fair value of securities that are not quoted in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques, primarily earning multiples and discounted cash flows. The models used to determine
fair value are validated and periodically reviewed by experienced personnel independent of that area
that created them. The models are based on company-generated cash flows including estimates and
assumptions based on observable market data on interest rates and equity returns. The discount rates
used for valuing equity securities are determined based on historical equity returns for other entities
operating in the same industry for which market returns are observable. Estimates and judgements
used are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of the securities.

NET CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
Uss USS
Net change in fair value on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
-Realised 20,529 8,509,407
-Net change in unrealised (884,678) (2,318,245)
Total net (losses)/gains (864,149) 6,191,162

DISTRIBUTION

The Manager did not propose any distribution to unitholders for the years ended 30 September 2019
and 2018.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the cash and cash equivalents for the Fund comprise
the following balances.

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Cash at bank 715,125 751,986

Cash at bank of US$715,125 (2018: US$751,986) was placed with BBH & Co. Interest income on
these balances for the year amounted to US$7,335 (2018: US$5,443).
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Listed securities 29,541,093 28,585,617
Unlisted securities 19,754 -
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 29,560,847 28,585,617
Deerivatives - 7
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 7

FINANCIAL ASSETS, AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
2019 2018
Uss USs
Listed securities - 2185914
Unlisted securities - 19,655
- 2,205,569

RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
USs Uss
Amounts due from unitholders - 105,575
Dividends receivable 1 42,397
Interest receivable 416 530
417 148,502
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 September 2019

{Continued)
DUE FROM BROKER
2019 2018
Uss Uss
Due from broker - 347,132

Due from broker includes amounts receivable for securities transactions that have not settled at the
date of the Statement of Financial Position. The Fund continuously monitors the credit standing of
each broker with which it conducts business.

FAIR VALUE RESERVES
2019 2018
Uss Uss
Beginning of the year 535,733 (65,350
Adoption of FRS 109* {(535,733) -
Balance at 1 October 2019 - (65,350)
Financial assets, available-for-sale
-Bevaluation - a01,083
End of the year - 535,733

As at 30 September 2019, the fair value reserves amounted to USENil (2018: US$535,733) and was
recognised as part of net assets attributable to the unitholders at the end of the vear.

*: See Note 2.1(a) for details of reclassification as at 1 October 2018 on the adoption of FRS 109,

131/189



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 September 2019

{Continued)
13. PAYABLES

2019 2018

Uss Uss

Redemption payable to unitholders 87,654 73,654
Management fee payable 2,192 2,298
Investment management fee payable 19,598 20,427
Trustee fee payable 1.461 1,532
Administration fee payable 3,012 3,324
Custodian fee payable 59,242 54,336
Audit fee payable 42,000 43,268
Distributor fee payable 12,149 12,767
Agent company fee payable 4,871 5,107
Other fees 57,309 55,627
289,488 272,340

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operational decisions.

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the financial statements, during the
year, in the ordinary course of its business, the following transactions took place with the related
parties.

{al Management fee
The Manager is entitled to a management fee calculated at the rate of 0.09% per annum of the Fund’s

NAYV, The management fee is calculated prior to the accrual of any performance fee and acerued on
each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Management fee 26,129 19,508

45
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Investment management fee
The Investment Manager is entitled to an investment management fee calculated at 0.8% per annum

of the Fund’s NAV. The investment management fee is calculated prior to the accrual of any
performance fee and accrued on each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Investment management fee 232,366 263,093

{c) Performance fee

The Investment Manager is also entitled to receive a Performance Fee calculated and payable in
arrears at the end of each calendar quarter. The Performance Fee for any calendar quarter will be an
amount equal to 15% of the amount by which the NAV per unit at the end of the relevant quarter
exceeds the highest of the NAV per unit as at the end of any of the preceding calendar quarters or
the initial issue price of US$100 if it is higher, multiplied by the average number of units in issue

during the relevant quarter.
2019 2018
USSs Uss
Performance fee paid - 1,819,646

Mo performance fees were incurred by the Fund for each quarter during the financial year ended 30
September 2019, as the Fund had not outperformed the High Watermark (*“HWM™). For the quarters
ended 30 December 2017 and 31 March 2018, the Fund outperformed the HWM which resulted in
performance fees being incurred by the Fund during the year ended 30 September 2018.
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
(Continued)

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) Trustee fee
The Trustee is entitled to a trustee fee calculated at 0.06% per annum of the Fund’s NAV, subject

to a minimum fee of US$10,000 per annum. The trustee fee is calculated prior to the accrual of any
performance fee and accrued on each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

2019 2018
Uss USss
Trustee fee 17,419 19,732

(e} Custodian fee and Administration fee

The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Fund at such rates as agreed between the Custodian
and Trustee,

The administration fee is calculated at the rate of 0.11% per annum of the Fund’s NAV for any NAV
equal to or below USS20 million or 0.1% per annum of the Fund’s NAV for NAV above 1S520
million, subject to a minimum of US$15,000 per annum. The administration fee is calculated prior
to the accrual of any performance fee and accrued on each valuation day and payable monthly in

ATTears.
2019 2018
USS Uss
Custodian and administration fee 241,780 269,684
() Regisirar fee

The Administrator charges US$3,000 per annum for acting as delegate registrar of the Fund.

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Registrar fee 3,000 3,000

47
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VIETNAM FUND
(A SUB TRUST OF FC GLOBAL)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 September 2019
{Continued)

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(&) Distributor and agent company fee

The Distributor receives out of assets of the Fund, a fee at the rate of (.5% per annum of the Fund's
NAV. The agent company receives out of assets of the Fund, in its capacity as the agent company
of the Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.2% per annum of the Fund's NAV. The distribution and agent
company fee is calculated prior to the acerual of any performance fee and accrued on each valuation
day and payable monthly in arrears.

2019 2018
USS Uss
Distributor fee 145,129 164,433
Agent company fee 58,063 65,773

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

For the period from 1 October 2019 to the issuance date of these financial statements, the Fund had
subscriptions and redemptions amounting to US$92,791 and US31,489,220 respectively.

16. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Management on 13 March 2020.

48
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2020
26,919,462.88 2,935,836,622
616,978.15 67,287,637
26,302,484.73 2,868,548,985
158,763
165.67 18,068
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1)
2020 5,000
50,000 1,000
@)
2020

2020

30,564,488.95

6,608,922,000
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2019

31

100,875,370 951,925
7,929,856 951,925
1,389,578 951,925

80,000,000
11,281,754 99,923,445
274,182 50,000,000
49,923,445
49,923,445
49,923,445
99,923,445
100,875,370 100,875,370
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2018 2019 31

18,392,402

7,628,158

10,764,244

7,437,931

3,326,313

165,546 165,546

40,689 40,689

3,451,170

3,451,170

3,451,170
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2018 2019 31

2018 50,000,000 66,472,275 66,472,275 | 116,472,275 | 116,472,275

20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
3,451,170 3,451,170 3,451,170 3,451,170

16,548,830 16,548,830 16,548,830 16,548,830

2019 31 50,000,000 49,923,445 49,923,445 99,923,445 99,923,445
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FC Investment Ltd.
Balance sheet
As of August 31, 2019

(Unit: Yen)
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Current assets: 100,875,370 | Current liabilities: 951,925
Cash and deposits 7,929,856 Accounts payable 951,925
Accounts receivable 1,389,578 | Total liabilities 951,925
Short-term loans receivable 80,000,000 NET ASSETS
Operational investment securities 11,281,754 | Shareholders® equity 99,923,445
Other 274,182 Common stock 50,000,000
Retained earnings 49,923,445
Other retained earnings 49,923,445
Retained earnings brought forward 49,923,445
Total net assets 99,923,445
Total assets 100,875,370 | Total liabilities and net assets 100,875,370
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FC Investment Ltd.
Statement of income
From September 1, 2018 to August 31, 2019

(Unit: Yen)
Account Amount
Net sales 18,392,402
Cost of sales 7,628,158
Gross profit 10,764,244
Selling, general and administrative expenses 7,437,931
Operating income 3,326,313
Other income
Interest income 165,546 165,546
Other expenses
Foreign exchange loss 40,689 40,689
Ordinary income 3,451,170
Income before income taxes 3,451,170
Net income 3,451,170
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FC INVESTMENT LTD.
Statements of changes in shareholder”s equity

From September 1, 2018 to August 31, 2019

(Unit: Yen)
Shareholders® equity
Retained earnings
Other
retained Total net
Common stock earnings Total Shareholders® assets
- retained equity
Retained ,
earnings earnings
brought
forward
Balance at Septemberl 1, 2018 50,000,000 66,472,275 66,472,275 116,472,275 116,472,275
Changed amounts for this term
Dividends of surplus -20,000,000 | -20,000,000 | -20,000,000 | -20,000,000
Net income for the year 3,451,170 3,451,170 3,451,170 3,451,170
Igﬁ;' changed amounts for this - | -16,548,830 | -16,548,830 | -16,548,830 | -16,548,830
Balance at August 31, 2019 50,000,000 49,923,445 49,923,445 99,923,445 99,923,445
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FC INVESTMENT LTD.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note to Significant accounting policies
Valuation standards and methods for securities
Operational investment securities
Non-marketable securities ...... Stated at cost based on the moving average method.

For investments in the investment enterprise limited Liability association and similar
associations (deemed to be securities pursuant to Article 2, Paragraph 2 to the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Law), the net amount corresponding to the ownership percentage is
used, based on the reporting date and other materials stipulated in the partnership contract.
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117,419,822
100,076,427
1,536,360
15,694,515

112,520

947,547

947,547

947,547

116,472,275
50,000,000
66,472,275
66,472,275

66,472,275

116,472,275

117,419,822

117,419,822
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2017 2018 31

19,419,975

3,822,002

15,597,973

8,166,090

7,431,883

843 843

24,182 24,182

7,408,544

7,408,544

7,408,544
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2017 2018 31

2017 50,000,000 59,063,731 59,063,731 | 109,063,731 | 109,063,731

7,408,544 7,408,544 7,408,544 7,408,544

7,408,544 7,408,544 7,408,544 7,408,544

2018 31 50,000,000 66,472,275 66,472,275 | 116,472,275 | 116,472,275
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FC Investment Ltd.
Balance sheet
As of August 31, 2018

(Unit: Yen)
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Current assets: 117,419,822 | Current liabilities: 947,547
Cash and deposits 100,076,427 Accounts payable 947,547
Accounts receivable 1,536,360 | Total liabilities 947,547
Operational investment securities 15,694,515 NET ASSETS
Other 112,520 | Shareholders” equity 116,472,275
Common stock 50,000,000
Retained earnings 66,472,275
Other retained earnings 66,472,275
Retained earnings brought forward 66,472,275
Total net assets 116,472,275
Total assets 117,419,822 | Total liabilities and net assets 117,419,822
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FC Investment Ltd.
Statement of income
From September 1, 2017 to August 31, 2018

(Unit: Yen)
Account Amount
Net sales 19,419,975
Cost of sales 3,822,002
Gross profit 15,597,973
Selling, general and administrative expenses 8,166,090
Operating income 7,431,883
Other income
Interest income 843 843
Other expenses
Foreign exchange loss 24,182 24,182
Ordinary income 7,408,544
Income before income taxes 7,408,544
Net income 7,408,544
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(Unit: Yen)
Shareholders® equity
Retained earnings
Other
retained Total net
Common stock earnings Total Shareholders® assets
- retained equity
Retained -
earnings earnings
brought
forward
Balance at Septemberl 1, 2017 50,000,000 59,063,731 59,063,731 109,063,731 109,063,731
Changed amounts for this term
Net income for the year 7,408,544 7,408,544 7,408,544 7,408,544
Total changed anounts for this -| 7,408,544 | 7,208,544 | 7,408,544 | 7,408,544
Balance at August 31, 2018 50,000,000 66,472,275 66,472,275 116,472,275 116,472,275
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FC INVESTMENT LTD.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note to Significant accounting policies
Valuation standards and methods for securities
Operational investment securities
Non-marketable securities ...... Stated at cost based on the moving average method.

For investments in the investment enterprise limited Liability association and similar
associations (deemed to be securities pursuant to Article 2, Paragraph 2 to the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Law), the net amount corresponding to the ownership percentage is
used, based on the reporting date and other materials stipulated in the partnership contract.

155/189



(

)

©)

@

(

)

(b)

156/189

10

©

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



@
2020

(¢

383

Q

2020

(¢

531,915

Limited
@
2020
Q2

Branch

@

Q@

280

(1) 18

10

531,91

12

2001 10 16

62,9

1995

1

5
2020
0.30

92,338

1925

Capital Asset

2004

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Management Co., Ltd.

(1) 89150

G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited

6,399
31

75 7,798

SMT Fund Services (lIreland)

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London

2020

157/189

3,420



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Aizawa Ltd. Co., Securities.

@
2020 80
@
Capital Asset Management Co., Ltd.
G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited
SMT Fund Services (Ireland)
Limited
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London
Branch

Aizawa Ltd. Co., Securities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT

The Board of Directors
FC Investment Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FC Investment Ltd. which comprise
the balance sheets as of August 31, 2018, and income statements and the statements of
changes in shareholder®s equity for the year then ended, notes to financial statements,
and the annexed detailed statement thereof , all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error

Auditor®™s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in Japan. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, while the objective of the financial statement audit is not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity"s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements and the annexed detailed statement thereof
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of FC Investment Ltd. as
at August 31 2018, and its financial performance for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Koa Audit Corporation

Tokyo, Japan
January 18, 2019
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Independent Auditor®s Report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Vietnam Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Vietnam Fund (a sub-trust of FC Global) (the Fund) as at 30 September 2019, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Fund"s financial statements comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2019;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (1ESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 1ESBA Code.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement
by the Trustee (but does not include the Fund®s financial statements and our auditor”s report
thereon).

Our opinion on the Fund®s financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor™s Report (continued)

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Vietnam Fund

In connection with our audit of the Fund"s financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be material ly misstated. 1T, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor™s Report (continued)

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Vietnam Fund

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’'s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’'s ability to continue as a going concern.
IT we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as trustee of the Fund in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, ingiving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

13 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors
FC Investment Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FC Investment Ltd. which comprise the balance
sheets as of August 31, 2019, and income statements and the statements of changes in shareholder's equity for
the year then ended, notes to financial statements, and the annexed detailed statement thereof , all expressed in
Japanese yen.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
duetofraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, while the objective of the financia statement audit is not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit aso includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements and the annexed detailed statement thereof present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of FC Investment Ltd. as at August 31 2019, and its financial performance for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Koa Audit Corporation

Tokyo, Japan
January 28, 2020
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